TOWNOFMILFORD,NH
OFFICEOFCOMMUNITYDEVELOPMENT

1 UNION SQUARE, MILFORD, NH 03055 TEL: (603)249-0620 WEB: WWW.MILFORD.NH.GOV
STAFE MEMO
Date: August 23, 2018
To: Town of Milford Planning Board
From: Lincoln Daley, Community Development Director

Subject:  Hitchiner Manufacturing, Inc., 594 EIm Street, Tax Map 13, Lot 6 and 97 Old Wilton Road,
Tax Map 14, Lot 6. Public Hearing for an amendment to the major site plan approved on May 22,
2018, for the construction of an 85,000 square foot industrial manufacturing building and minor
parking improvements to increase the total impervious area for a cooling tower concrete pad and
associated drainage improvements within the Industrial zoning district.

BACKGROUND:

The applicant is presenting the formal amendment to the approved May 22, 2018 Site Plan Approval for the
construction of an 85,000 square foot manufacturing facility on Hitchiner Way, additional parking spaces,
enlarged drainage system and stormwater management system, and related landscaping and site lighting plans.
The site plan approval also included the construction of a small parking area in front of the “Barn”
company/private cafeteria operation located at 97 Old Wilton Road.

Since the approval, construction of the project is underway. Hitchiner has started foundation construction on
the new Plant No. 3 building. They are seeking approval to (1) change from four evaporative cooling towers
on a 29°x67’ concrete pad (previously approved) to seven adiabatic cooling towers on a 46’110’ concrete pad
(proposed revision) and (2) and adjustments to the drainage and stormwater management design and detention
area resulting in a net increase of impervious area of 3,117 and 4,000 square feet to total disturbed area. This
change will reduce water usage by approximately 1.5 million gallons annually.

ADDRESS:
594 Elm Street, Map 13 Lot 6.
97 Old Wilton Road, Map 14 Lot 6

LOT AREA:
Lot 13-6: £10.968 Acres (477,751SF)
Lot 14-4: £1.8 Acres (78,408SF)

APPLICATION STATUS:

The application is complete and ready to be accepted. The Board will need to make a determination of regional
impact.

NOTICES:
Notices were sent to all property abutters on August 16, 2018.

ZONING DISTRICT/INFORMATION:

The subject property is within the Industrial “I” Zoning District: The intent of the Industrial “I” District is to
provide areas for manufacturing, processing, assembly, wholesaling, research and development. The proposed
industrial development and site improvements meet the intent of the Industrial District and meet all dimensional
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requirements as stated in Section 5.06.

The property also falls within the West EIm Street Gateway District and is subject to the relevant design and
performance standard relative to industrial development. The intent of this District is to encourage economic
development in the West EIm Street Gateway District by enhancing, preserving and protecting the natural,
historic and cultural resources of the Town. The proposal meets the intent of the District by providing a building
design that is functional, aesthetically pleasing and harmonious with the architectural heritage of the community
as well as providing positive economic return to the Town and property owners. The development reflects the
intended character of Milford’s industrial neighborhoods relative to massing, height, lot coverage, and setbacks,
and enhances the streetscape and visual character of the corridor.

TRAFFIC AND ACCESS MANAGEMENT:

Vehicular egress and access to the property and new facility will be from driveways off of Hitchiner Way and
EIm Street. Internal drives and parking areas provide for sufficient emergency vehicle access and circulation.
Only larger delivery and transport vehicles will access/egress from the site via the EIm Street entrance. The
increased area of impervious surface and drainage area will have no impact to the internal circulation patterns and
access/egress from the site.

OPEN SPACE/LANDSCAPING:

With the increase in impervious area, the applicant will need to recalculate the total open space area for the property
and revise the plans accordingly. Even with increase impervious area, it is anticipated that the total open space area
will meet the require 30% (currently 32%).

DRAINAGE:

Although the project is not located within the 100-year flood plain as shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map
Number 330096, dated September 25, 2009, the property falls within the Milford Groundwater Protection
Zone 1 Overlay.

To compensate for the increased impervious area and further encroachment on the northerly slope of the detention
area by the larger pad, the applicant made some minor adjustments to the grading in the permanent pool area and
moved the southerly slope of the usually dry portion of the detention 15 feet to the south to compensate for the lost
volume. This is illustrated on the attached pdf’s. The net result is an increase of disturbed area of 4,000 +/- SF and
the peak detention basin elevation and peak rates of runoff leaving the site at the POA remaining substantially the
same as the approved design.

The applicant submitted the revised plan to the NH DES for review under their approved Alteration of Terrain
permit (AoT 180425-065). The NH DES has accepted the revised design and information and informed the
applicant that a revised Alternation of Terrain Permit would not be required. The local stormwater permit
application will need to be resubmitted to the Environmental Coordinator for review and approval.

BUILDING ELEVATIONS:

The previously approved plan included visual mitigation of the water cooling towers and pad in the form of
horizontal panels. It is our understanding that the applicant will continue the same or similar visual mitigation. With
the recommended enhanced landscaped design and inclusion the proposed architectural design elements, Staff finds
that building meets the requirements of the Development Regulations and Zoning Ordinance.

INTERDEPARTMENTAL REVIEWS:
Ambulance: No comments.

Assessing: No comments.
Building Department: No comments

Conservation Commission: See attached May 18" letter.
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Environmental Coordinator: The applicant will be required to submit a revised local stormwater permit
application.

Fire Department: No comments.

Heritage Commission: No comments/issues.
Police Department: No comments submitted.
SoRLAC: No comments submitted.

Water Utilities: No comments submitted.
Zoning Administrator: No further comments.

Planning Department:

Said comments and recommendations provide an overview of areas that will be need to be addressed at the
Public Hearing or shown as part of the application:

1. General Comment. Modify cover sheet to include both Map 13, Lot 6 and Map 16, Lot 6 in title and subsequent Sheet
title blocks.

2. Sheet 1, Notes #4. Please amend the purpose of plan description to detail the proposed amendment(s).

3. Sheet 1, Notes #8. Please revise the open space calculation for Map 13 Lot 6 to include the proposed amendment. In
addition, please provide the open space calculation for Map 14 Lot 6.

4. Sheet 9. Please revise the plan to include the engineering and construction details for the cooling town concrete pad
and retaining wall.

5. Sheet 9. What is the distance/height from the top to the retaining wall to the grade of the riprap and retaining pond?
Will a fence need to be installed for increased safety?

6. Sheet 9. Given the proximity of the 7 coolant towers the wetlands, detention pond, and drainage system, please
explain what preventative measure/safeguards will be in place should there be spill?

7. Sheet 9. Please explain the reason for locating a snow storage area within the riprap area of the drainage system.

8. Sheet 20. Please confirm if the trees located within the riprap areas will remain (approx. 8 trees). If they are
removed, please revise the landscape to show the locations of the replacement/relocated trees.

9. General Comment. Please detail the total area of increased disturbance associated with the amendment. In addition, a
revised Milford Storwater Permit will need to be filed with the Town for review and approval.

10. General Comment. Please provide the revised drainage calculation and analysis report.

11. General Comment. Please describe the visual mitigation efforts for 7 cooling towers. We presume that the applicant
will employ/utilize the previously approved method.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:

The applicant should be prepared to address all of the comments raised by the Planning Board, Conservation
Commission, Town Consultants, Staff, and public pertaining to the Site Plan Final Design and revise the
plans/information accordingly. Barring any/all input and recommendations from the Board, Staff recommends
approving the application subject to the following conditions:

1. The Applicant shall submit written confirmation of approvals local stormwater permit from NH DES and

Town of Milford.
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2. The Applicant shall The Applicants shall submit any/all revised plans, reports, and associated information to
the Community Development Office for review and approval by the Town and its agents.
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